Notice of Meeting

Economic Prosperity, Environment
and Highways Board
Date & time
Thursday, 12
January 2017 at
10.30 am

Place
Ashcombe, County
Hall, Penrhyn Road,
Kingston upon
Thames, KT1 2DN

Contact
Huma Younis or Sharmina
Ullah
Room 122, County Hall
Tel 0208 213 2725 or 020
8213 2838

Chief Executive
David McNulty

huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk or
sharmina.ullah@surreycc.gov.uk

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122,
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email
huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk or
sharmina.ullah@surreycc.gov.uk.
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you
have any special requirements, please contact Huma Younis or
Sharmina Ullah on 0208 213 2725 or 020 8213 2838.
Elected Members
Mr David Harmer (Chairman), Mr Bob Gardner (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Nikki Barton, Mr Mike
Bennison, Mrs Natalie Bramhall, Mr Stephen Cooksey, Mrs Pat Frost, Dr Zully Grant-Duff, Mr
Ken Gulati, Mr Peter Hickman, Mr George Johnson, Mr Richard Wilson, Mrs Victoria Young, Mr
Ian Beardsmore and Ms Denise Turner-Stewart

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Committee is responsible for the following areas,
Performance, Finance and Risk
Monitoring for the E&I Directorate
Strategic Planning
Economic Prosperity
Countryside
Waste and recycling
Transport Service Infrastructure
Aviation
Highway Maintenance

Road Safety

Community Transport

Concessionary Travel

Economic Development and the
Rural Economy
Housing
Local Transport Plan

Minerals
Parking Regulation and
Enforcement
Climate Change and Carbon Energy
Rights of Way
Cycle Routes
Gypsy and Traveller Sites

Page 1 of 4

Biodiversity and Wildlife
Planning Services
Street Lighting
Flood Prevention and Infrastructure

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
To note any apologies for absence.

2

MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 8 DECEMBER 2016

(Pages 1
- 12)

To agree the previous minutes as a true record of the meeting.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or
as soon as possible thereafter
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting
NOTES:
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest

4



As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a
spouse or civil partner)



Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be
reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
To receive any questions or petitions.
Notes:
 The deadline for Member’s questions is 12:00pm four working days
before the meeting, Friday 6 January 2017.

5



The deadline for public questions is seven days before the
meeting, Thursday 5 January 2017.



The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no
petitions have been received.

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK
PROGRAMME
The board is asked to monitor progress on the implementation of
recommendations from the previous meeting and to review it forward work
programme.

Page 2 of 4

(Pages
13 - 20)

6

UPDATES FROM MEMBER REFERENCE GROUPS AND TASK
GROUPS

(Pages
21 - 22)

To receive a verbal update from the Board’s Task and Member Reference
Groups.

7

REVIEW OF THE SURREY WASTE PLAN: RESULTS OF
CONSULTATION

(Pages
23 - 64)

Purpose of the report: Policy Development and Review
Surrey County Council in its roles as the Waste Planning Authority is
preparing a new Surrey Waste Local Plan. The first stage of consultation,
the Issues & Options stage, ran from 2 September to 25 November 2016.
This paper is provided to update the Board on the results of the
consultation and outline the next stages of preparation of a new Surrey
Waste Local Plan.

8

ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE UPDATE

(Pages
65 - 72)

Purpose of the report: Scrutiny of Services and Budgets
To receive a finance update on the Environment and Infrastructure
directorate.
Discussions are ongoing and any further updates will be provided to
Members at the meeting.

9

DATE OF NEXT MEETING: THURSDAY 2 MARCH 2017
The next meeting of the Economic Prosperity, Environment and Highways
Board will be held on Thursday 2 March at 10:30am in the Ashcombe
Suite, County Hall, Kingston Upon Thames.

David McNulty
Chief Executive
Published: Tuesday 3 January 2017

Page 3 of 4

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting. To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at
reception for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings with the
Chairman’s consent. Please liaise with the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start
of the meeting so that the Chairman can grant permission and those attending the meeting can
be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems,
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be
switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation

Page 4 of 4

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the ECONOMIC PROSPERITY, ENVIRONMENT
AND HIGHWAYS BOARD held at 10.30 am on 8 December 2016 at
Ashcombe, County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 2DN.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Board at its meeting on
Thursday, 12 January 2017.
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Mr David Harmer (Chairman)
Mr Bob Gardner (Vice-Chairman)
Mrs Nikki Barton
Mr Mike Bennison
Mrs Natalie Bramhall
Mr Stephen Cooksey
Mrs Pat Frost
Dr Zully Grant-Duff
Mr Ken Gulati
Mr Peter Hickman
Mr George Johnson
Mr Richard Wilson
Mrs Victoria Young
Mr Ian Beardsmore
Ms Denise Turner-Stewart

Page 1 of 11

Page 1

82/16 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
Apologies were received from Richard Wilson.
83/16 MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 19 OCTOBER 2016 [Item 2]
A Member commented on the previous minutes from Thursday 19 October
and referred to page 4, paragraph 13 indicating that the risk management
authority should be referenced and the application of ‘impedance’ was
incorrect terminology. The Chairman noted the concern and advised the
paragraph was indeed satisfactory which was supported by the Cabinet
Member for Environment, Highways and Flooding.
The minutes from the previous meeting were agreed as a true and accurate
record.
84/16 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
There were no declarations of interests made.
85/16 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
There were no questions or petitions received.
86/16 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE
BOARD [Item 5]
Key Points raised during the discussion:
1. A Member queried the responses regarding the Winter Maintenance
saving cost recommendation, part a. and b., raising the question whether
information around the Thermal Mapping proposal was available and
when Members be notified of the compensating savings proposals.
2. The Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and Flooding indicated
that this matter would be discussed on 21 December 2016 and the
information would be available at the next Board meeting which will be
held on 12 January 2017.
The Cabinet Member also wanted Members to note that there was no truth in
reports that roads starting with the letters D and E roads had been missed
from the street lighting programme. The Board were advised that these roads
were still in the process of being assessed and had not been scheduled in the
programme as of yet.
Actions:
EP8- For the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Flooding to
provide the board with details on the County’s decision regarding thermal
mapping proposals.

Page 2 of 11

Page 2

87/16 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
[Item 6]
Key Points raised during the discussion:
The Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and Flooding informed the
Board that the Road Safety Improvements on Bridge Street, Guildford would
be discussed at the LEP Board in January 2017.
The Board noted and agreed with the proposed Recommendations Tracker
and Forward Work Programme.
88/16 UPDATES FROM MEMBER REFERENCE GROUPS AND TASK GROUPS
[Item 7]
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman indicated the Basingstoke Canal was listed on today’s
agenda and advised that an update would be shared at item 11.
2. It was noted that the Countryside Management Member Reference
Group would meet in January 2017, following the Board meeting on 12
January.
3. In the Mr Wilson’s absence, the Customer Service Excellence Member
Reference Group reported that Highways and Transport were
continuing to address the partial compliances identified during the last
assessment, the Champions network was gathering information on
how their areas of service were utilising feedback and benchmarking
data. In addition work was ongoing to ensure recruitment and
induction processes were embedded. A new customer service course
for Highways and Transport staff was being developed using real
examples to demonstrate good and bad behaviour. The course would
be delivered by volunteers across the service and roll out will
commence in the New Year.
4. Following input from the MRG, a new weekly Highways bulletin has
been launched and the service would welcome feedback from
Members. The Customer Service Excellence MRG had also visited the
Contact Centre and received an update on how they were working
with Highways to deliver improvements for customers.
5. The Chairman commended Councillor Richard Wilson for his
continuous hard work.
6. The Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and Flooding
suggested to the Board that the Finance Sub group, Highways MRG,
Local Transport Review MRG and the Waste Local Plan MRG
organise a meeting, post 15 January 2017 to ensure everyone
understands what the financial situation is.
7. In terms of the Finance Sub-Group, the Chairman reported that the
Sub-Group did not prepare any recommendations in their last meeting,
however requested Officers to provide a list of areas of possible
savings for Environment and Planning and Highways and Transport

Page 3 of 11

Page 3

with weightings attached to each area of saving. The Board noted that
the Finance Sub-Group would potentially meet in January 2017, when
the financial situation would be clearer.
8. It was noted that the Highways for the Future Member Reference
Group had not recently met, however looked forward to working with
Lucy Monie, the new head of Highways and Transport.
9. The Waste Local Plan Member Reference Group spokesperson stated
that the MRG had met twice previously and informed the Board that
responses from the November Consultation were being collated and
would be reviewed in a meeting following on from the Board meeting
today.
10. The Board were informed the Surrey Waste Partnership Future
Member Reference Group have met three times and have had
discussions around recycling credits and the direction of travel for the
service. It was highlighted that four District and Borough authorities
had moved towards a co-ownership approach, Mole Valley, Surrey
Heath, Elmbridge and Woking and the MRG were anticipating the core
functions of SCC to be incorporated into the contract.
11. The Chairman informed Members the new waste collection contractor
for the co-ownership would be Amey and that it was an open invitation
for other Boroughs and Districts to get involved and join.
89/16 CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT (AGENCY AGREEMENTS) 2016/17
[Item 8]
Witnesses:
Richard Bolton, Local Highway Services Group Manager
David Curl, Parking Strategy & Implementation Team Manager
Tim Semken, Lead Auditor
Simon White, Audit Performance Manager
Declarations of interest:
None
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Local Highway Services Group Manager introduced the report
and informed the Board that Surrey County Council (SCC) have been
responsible for parking enforcement since 2004 however the contracts
in place were due to expire in 2018. SCC was originally operating at a
loss of £1M but from 2011/12 were operating at no loss. There have
been concerns around parking enforcement but arrangements with
agents have worked well.
2. Due to concerns highlighted by Members regarding issues with
enforcement, audit have provided the report which has been
presented to the Board today.
3. Officers indicated that they had met with Reigate and Banstead
officers which led to positive discussions and outcomes, Officers

Page 4 of 11

Page 4

advised that further details from this meeting could be provided at a
future date.
4. The Chairman advised the Board that reports received from audit
should be reviewed with the approach that Members are satisfied the
report has not overlooked or missed anything key. The Chairman
further advised that Members should be confident the Management
Action Plan (MAP) has addressed these concerns.
5. In terms of the Management Action Plan, it was noted that the Audit
and Governance Committee had raised concerns and gave the
opinion the Plan should be stronger.
6. A Member queried whether the report only assessed and concentrated
on Reigate and Banstead or if concerns had been presented in
relation to all other Borough and Districts. The Officer advised that as
well as Reigate and Banstead, other authorities such as Elmbridge
and Guildford were audited. The Local Highway Services Group
Manager was confident that information presented from the agents
was accurate.
7. Reference was made to one of the key findings of the audit report
which stated that annual returns of all Boroughs and Districts were
subject to audit verification before it was submitted to SCC. Officers
were asked how this fits alongside the current contractual agreement
which covers the period 2013-2018 and whether authorities could
demand this as this had not been enforced or met with. Members were
assured Officers had the ability to make sure this was complied with
and going forward would devise a mechanism to ensure it would be
carried out.
8. Following the discussion above the Member raised the concern that
contractual requirements should be monitored, the Officer indicated
that it was an agency agreement and not a formal contractual
agreement.
9. There was a discussion around fixed apportionments and whether
there was any conclusion to reviewing this. The Officer explained this
was a complex area and to ensure SCC break even on the deficits
produced this will be raised with the Surrey Treasurers’ Group in
identifying a consistent approach for future arrangements across the
County.
10. A Member suggested that it would be beneficial to have information
illustrating good practice and behavioural patterns across the County
to allow Members to see where good performance is taking place. The
Officer advised that this information was available in the Annual report
and would be happy to share a link with Members.
11. A Member shared the view that the language used in the report
implied that there was misappropriation and queried if this should be
investigated further. The Audit Performance Manager assured the
Board that although the report included strong worded terminology
there were no suspicions that any misappropriation had taken place.

Page 5 of 11

Page 5

12. It was brought to the Boards attention that there was no ability to
challenge overheads at Local Committee level and an audit method
should be in place to ensure transparency of allocations. The Audit
Performance Managerexplained that as each of the district and
boroughs were sovereign authorities there was a trust that audits were
carried out objectively. It was explained that officers had asked for
certification for annual financial returns and received regular audit
records.
13. A Member highlighted that external auditors had given Reigate and
Banstead an ‘outstanding’ audit rating. It was stated that Reigate and
Banstead used to make a surplus but when there had been a change
of reporting they were in fact making a deficit. The Chairman noted
this point and advised this area was complex, however gave high
regard to the team present at today’s meeting in ensuring
improvements would be made.
14. The Local Highway Services Group Manager indicated that the MAP
would run until April 2017 and would be happy to update the Board at
a future meeting. The Chairman suggested the Board review this item
further in 6 months’ time.
Recommendations:
The Board reviewed and commented on the audit report and Management
Action Plan.
Actions:
EP9- For the Local Highway Services Group Manager to send the board a link
detailing performance per borough in relation to agency agreements.
EP10- For a Civil Parking Enforcement Audit Update Item to be added to the
forward work programme for summer 2017.
90/16 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY PROGRESS REPORT [Item 9]
Witnesses
Paul Druce, Infrastructure Agreements & CIL Manager
Declarations of interest:
None
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Infrastructure Agreements and CIL Manager introduced the report
and provided further updates since the report was published,
highlighting that Waverley Borough Council was currently working on
their charging schedule and were hoping to publish it very shortly.
Furthermore the Board were informed that SCC have recently made
31 applications for CIL funding for a variety of projects to Reigate and
Banstead Borough Council with a view to the projects being included
in their five year Strategic Infrastructure Plan.

Page 6 of 11

Page 6

2. A Member raised concern with the five contributions restriction in
accordance with the requirements of the Regulation 122 once CIL was
adopted and asked for more information regarding this. The Officer
explained this complex area, informing Members s106 requests could
still be sought to support development if the infrastructure or project
had not previously sought five s106 contributions. It was further stated
that this restriction was causing significant difficulties for authorities
such as the County Council and that local plan site allocations helped
the County plan for S106 contributions on strategic sites as a result of
the on site requirements of such large sites.
3. Following on from the discussion above, Members requested whether
the CIL Adoption progress in Surrey table on page 37 of the report
could in future indicate which Boroughs and Districts allow s106
contributions from the developer.
4. There was a discussion around whether it was possible to make
revisions to Regulation 123 lists and the Officer indicated that this was
possible but a short public consultation was required. The
Infrastructure Agreements & CIL Manager advised that Elmbridge
Borough Council had recently undertaken such an exercise.
Mike Bennison left the meeting at 11:35am
5. A Member referred to SANGS (suitable alternative natural green
spaces) and requested the Officer elaborate on the impact money
directed to infrastructure has on this. The Officer advised the inclusion
of SANGS significantly reduced monies available for other
infrastructure due to its high cost and would encourage the allocation
of CIL monies to be reconsidered in order to avoid such implications. It
was explained that the large amount of money allocated to SANGS
was required in order to generate the housing, as was being done in
Surrey Heath. But this has an impact on education and highways
infrastructure which in turn is not being funded from CIL.
6. The officer was asked on what grounds an application could be
rejected by Local Authorities for where CIL should be spent. Members
noted that Education was being excluded from a number of CIL and
s106 lists, but the widely held view was that it should be covered by
CIL, especially as it was a statutory responsibility for the County to
cover the costs and provide school places.
6. A Member highlighted how the previous regime did not affect
Education in the same way as CIL whereas now the new regime has
increasingly stripped them of resources. The Board noted the
suggestion to scrutinise and look closer into the financial break down
of expenditure and the monies collected around CIL to ensure value
for money. The Infrastructure Agreements & CIL Manager stated that
more engagement with local authorities at a variety of levels was
actively taking place to ensure that applications for CIL were
considered more favourably at the allocation stage.
7. The Chairman expressed the view that schools should be located in
areas where CIL funding has been provided to avoid upsetting Council

Page 7 of 11

Page 7

Tax payers and the local residents. It was explained that Elmbridge
had reconsidered a number of previously rejected education CIL
applications and had approved them following local engagement and
that Tandridge had recently rejected a CIL application for education.
8. The Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and Flooding
explained that £14.72M had been collected as a result of CIL across
the Surrey authorities to date, and it was important for the board to see
where this money had been spent as in times of financial need, it was
vital to ensure spend was allocated to key concerns that were also
value for money.
9. A Member shared the view that CIL was challenging for two tier
authorities and emphasised how it was important to address how CIL
is allocated to ensure that it was used better to help Surrey residents.
The Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning explained that the
issue of CIL allocation was due to be discussed at the Chief
Executives meeting arranged for 9 December 2016 and that he would
report the outcome in due course.
11. The officer was asked about the recent consultation by Government
surrounding CIL. The Board were advised that Government would be
publishing the report of the Panel which was set up to consider the
consultation responses in due course. The County Council had lobbied
government as part of the consultation process.
Recommendations:
The Economic Prosperity, Environment and Highways board endorsed the
following recommendations:
a) That Officers continue collaboration with Borough and District
colleagues in their preparation of Local Plan policies, Infrastructure
Delivery Plans, CIL Charging Schedules and Regulation 123 Lists to
ensure, where possible, the County Council is able to support
development in each of the areas by securing and providing strategic
infrastructure at the required time,
b) That Officers continue to seek mitigation of infrastructure impacts from
developers through s106, on an application by application basis, in
those LPA areas where CIL has not been adopted, unless restricted
by the up to 5 obligation restriction,
c) That Officers continue to seek agreement as to how the governance
regime for CIL will operate in each of the areas, including the
involvement of County Member in the process where possible, and
d) That further work is undertaken to secure a reasonable and suitable
governance regime in each of the areas, in the light of the possible
different models for governance, given that the Woking Joint
Committee model is considered to offer the most open and transparent
collaborative process for deciding which projects CIL monies should
support.

Page 8 of 11

Page 8

Actions:
EP11-For the Infrastructure Agreements & CIL Manager to provide the Board
with details on how much money from CIL has been collected and what it has
been allocated to by the planning authorities.
EP12- For a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) progress report to be added
to the forward work programme for Summer 2017.
EP13- For the Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning to report back
to the Board on the outcome of the Surrey Chief Executives meeting to
discuss the allocation of CIL funds.
91/16 BASINGSTOKE CANAL UPDATE REPORT [Item 11]
Due to officer availability the Chairman agreed to consider this item before the
Superfast Broadband item (Item 10).
Witnesses
Ian Boast, Assistant Director for Environment
Lisa Creaye-Griffin, Countryside Group Manager
Declarations of interest:
None
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Countryside Group Manager introduced the report by way of a
PowerPoint presentation, this outlined the historical context, the
canal’s characteristics, the canal’s risks, the financial implications and
the future management options.
2. A Member made reference to the length of the canal, informing the
Board that it is 37 miles long and of that, 32 miles is owned by SCC
and HCC, therefore who had ownership of the remaining 5 miles.
Officers clarified that the remaining 5 miles were out of use and were
being built across.
3. A Member asked why borrowing money at low rates was not being
taken advantage of and applied to invest in the Canal. Officers
explained borrowing money would effectively generate revenue costs
which was not an option.
4. The Chairman expressed the view that the status quo option was not
sustainable in the long term and that other possibilities would need to
be explored and looked at broadly, going forward.
5. In terms of income generation opportunities, a Member indicated that
the canal could potentially self-fund through this. Officers advised the
Board that there was a business plan in place, in particular around
improving the camp site at the Canal Centre site. Furthermore,
Members noted that Officers were meeting with Knight Frank to
discuss possible opportunities going forward.

Page 9 of 11

Page 9

6. The Chairman informed the Board that further information would be
circulated to the Board after the Task Group meets in January 2017.
Recommendations:
The Economic Prosperity, Environment and Highways Board agreed to:
a. Support ongoing collaboration with Hampshire County Council in the
development of a business case around the preferred option.
b. Support further discussion and consultation with Basingstoke Canal
Joint Management Committee together with other key stakeholders as
part of that ongoing work.
c. Hold a Task Group meeting in early 2017 to report the outcome of the
market viability assessment.
Actions:
None
92/16 UPDATE ON THE SUPERFAST SURREY PROGRAMME [Item 10]
Witnesses
Graham Cook, Project Manager Superfast Surrey Programme
Cllr Peter Martin, Deputy Leader
Declarations of interest:
None
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman agreed for the meeting to be taken into part 2.

RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Act.
2. Officers were commended for their work and service around the
Superfast Surrey Programme, which has been recognised throughout
the County.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the update on the Superfast Surrey Programme.
Actions:
None.

Page 10 of 11

Page 10

93/16 DATE OF NEXT MEETING: 12 JANUARY 2017 [Item 12]
The next meeting of the Economic Prosperity, Environment and Highways
Board will be held on Thursday 12 January at 10.30am in the Ashcombe
Suite, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames.

Meeting ended at: 12.56 pm
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 11 of 11

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

ECONOMIC PROSPERITY, ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS BOARDACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 2016/17
The actions and recommendations tracker allows Board Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed and reported to the board,
it will be removed from the tracker.

Date of
meeting

Item

Recommendations/
Actions

Achieved or Still Outstanding

Responsible
Officer:

Page 13

ROAD SAFETY
IMPROVEMENTS ON
BRIDGE STREET,
GUILDFORD [Item 7]

EP1- For the Cabinet Member for
Highways, Transport and Flooding to
provide the board with a timeline
outlining the steps of the bidding
process for LEP funding; in relation to
the enterprise M3 bid involving Bridge
Street.

Achieved- A response was emailed to the
board on 08/12/2016. It was noted that a
response from the EM3 LEP was expected in
January 2017.

Cabinet Member for
Highways, Transport
and Flooding

8 Sept 2016

REPORT OF THE WINTER
MAINTENANCE TASK
GROUP [Item 8]

EP5- For the Asset Planning Team
Manager to report back to the board
with information on grit bins left at
under 50% full after the 2016 winter
season. To also report back on
whether refilling at 50% would provide
a significant saving. For this to be
added as an item on the forward work
programme for review in Summer
2017.

Outstanding- this item has been added to the
forward work programme for Summer 2017.

Asset Planning Team
Manager

8 December
2016

RESPONSES FROM THE
CABINET TO ISSUES
REFERRED BY THE
BOARD ]Item 5]

EP8- For the Cabinet Member for
Highways, Transport and Flooding to
provide the board with details on the
County’s decision regarding thermal
mapping proposals.

Outstanding

Cabinet Member for
Highways, Transport
and Flooding

Item 5

9 June 2016

CIVIL PARKING
ENFORCEMENT (AGENCY
AGREEMENTS) [Item 8]

EP9- For the Local Highway Services
Group Manager to send the board a
link detailing performance per
borough in relation to agency
agreements.

Outstanding

Local Highway Services
Group Manager

8 December
2016

CIVIL PARKING
ENFORCEMENT (AGENCY
AGREEMENTS) [Item 8]

EP10- For a Civil Parking
Enforcement Audit Update Item to be
added to the forward work
programme for summer 2017.

Achieved- This item has been added to the
forward work programme.

Scrutiny Officer

8 December
2016

COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
PROGRESS REPORT [Item
9]

EP11-For the Infrastructure
Agreements & CIL Manager to
provide the Board with details on how
much money from CIL has been
collected and what it has been
allocated to by the planning
authorities.

Outstanding

Infrastructure
Agreements & CIL
Manager

8 December
2016

COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
PROGRESS REPORT [Item
9]

EP12- For a Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) progress
report to be added to the forward
work programme for Summer 2017.

Achieved- This item has been added to the
forward work programme for Summer 2017
and will be considered by the Board once the
Government review on CIL has been
published.

Scrutiny Officer

Page 14

8 December
2016

It has been confirmed that the Government
plans to publish the Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) review at around the same time as
the White Paper on Housing has been
published, which is due in Spring 2017.

8 December
2016

COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
PROGRESS REPORT [Item
9]

EP13- For the Cabinet Member for
Environment and Planning to report
back to the Board on the outcome of
the Surrey Chief Executives meeting
to discuss the allocation of CIL funds.

Outstanding

Cabinet Member for
Environment and
Planning

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

www.surreycc.gov.uk

Economic Prosperity, Environment &
Highways Board – Forward Work Programme
2016/17

• Waste Local Plan Member Reference Group
Update.

12 January 2017

• Finance Update.

• Update Report On Changes to Surreys
CRC’s.

2 March 2017

• Update Report on Road Safety Improvements
on Bridge Street, Guildford.

Page 17

Future Scrutiny Topics
Future Scrutiny Topics
Potential topics that can be scheduled for scrutiny when appropriate as well as
long term and ongoing items are listed below.







Update Report On Winter Service Cost Saving Recommendations- Summer 2017
Waste Local Plan Member Reference Group Update- June 2017
Basingstoke Canal Governance Final Report- (tbc)
Civil Parking Enforcement Audit Update- Summer 2017
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) progress report- Summer 2017

Page 18

Future Scrutiny Topics
Member Reference Groups/ Task Groups
Ongoing Member Reference Groups and Task Groups of the Board

Basingstoke Canal
Task Group

Michael Sydney
George Johnson
Bob Gardner
David Harmer
(Spokesperson)

To consider the most effective governance option
for Surrey county council in relation to the
Basingstoke Canal of which Surrey is a joint owner.
Recommendations of this Task Group will enable
the county council to decide whether they continue
their involvement with the Basingstoke Canal or
make changes to the current joint ownership
model.
The task group is due to report back to the board in
summer 2016.

Countryside
Management
Member Reference
Group

Bill Barker
Michael Sydney
Stephen Cooksey
David Harmer
(Spokesperson)

To report to EPEH with recommendations to advise
the Cabinet Member on the changes required to
the Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT)/Surrey County
Council (SCC) Agreement and its governance, to
ensure that it is fit for purpose for the remainder of
its term.
The MRG meets on an ad hoc basis as and when
the service requires support.

Customer Service
Excellence
Member Reference
Group

Finance SubGroup

John Beckett
Stephen Cooksey
George Johnson
Mike Bennison
Richard Wilson
(Spokesperson)

To support the Highways Service’s journey to
achieve the Customer Service Excellence (CSE)
Standard.

Mike Bennison
Stephen Cooksey
George Johnson
Bob Gardner
Richard Wilson
David Harmer
(Spokesperson)

To carry out robust scrutiny of major budgets,
performance and costs of the services within the
remit of the Environment & Transport Select
Committee, and review existing and potential
options for budget savings and performance
improvement including testing of the evidence base
for these options.

The MRG meets on an ad hoc basis as and when
the service requires support.

The sub group is scheduled to meet on a quarterly
basis.
Highways for the
Future Member
Reference Group

Stephen Cooksey
Peter Hickman
Richard Wilson
Mike Bennison
(Spokesperson)

To allow Member input into the Highways Service’s
plans for the future long-term management of
Surrey’s highways.
The MRG meets on an ad hoc basis as and when
the service requires support.

Page 19

Future Scrutiny Topics

Local Transport
Review Member
Reference Group

Winter
Maintenance Task
Group

Waste Local Plan
Member Reference
Group

Ian Beardsmore
Peter Hickman
Michael Sydney
Pat Frost
(Spokesperson)

To assist the E&I Directorate in its Local Transport
Review project.

Ian Beardsmore
David Harmer
Stephen Cooksey
(Spokesperson)

To provide scrutiny and oversight of Surrey’s
annual Winter Maintenance policy.

Stephen Cooksey
Richard Wilson
Natalie Bramhall
(Spokesperson)

To advise and support officers with the
development of a new Surrey waste local plan.

The MRG meets on an ad hoc basis as and when
the service requires support.

The task group meets in the summer to discuss the
future winter maintenance policy.

The MRG meets on an ad hoc basis as and when
the service requires support.
Surrey Waste
Partnership Future
Member Reference
Group

Richard Wilson
Ian Beardsmore
George Johnson
David Harmer
Zully Grant-Duff
(Spokesperson)

To support officers with the development of a single
approach to waste for Surrey.

The MRG meets on an ad hoc basis as and when
the service requires support.

Page 20

Item 6

Economic Prosperity, Environment and Highways Board
12 January 2017
Updates from Members Reference Groups and Task Group

1. To receive a verbal update from the Boards Member Reference
Groups and Task Groups.

Recommendation:
That the Board receives a verbal update from the Chairman of each
Member Reference Group and Task Group, making comments as
necessary.

Next Steps:
The Board will receive a verbal update from its Member Reference
Groups and Task Groups at each board meeting.
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contact:
Huma Younis, Scrutiny Officer
Contact details: 020 8213 2725, huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk
Sources/background papers: None

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

[RESTRICTED]
Item
7

Economic Prosperity, Environment and Highways Board
12 January 2017
Review of the Surrey Waste Plan: Results of Consultation
Purpose of the report: Policy Development and Review
Surrey County Council in its role as the Waste Planning Authority is preparing
a new Surrey Waste Local Plan. The first stage of consultation, the Issues &
Options stage, ran from 2 September to 25 November 2016.
This paper is provided to update the Board on the results of the consultation
and outline the next stages of preparation for the new Surrey Waste Local
Plan.

Introduction:
1.

Surrey County Council is the Waste Planning Authority (WPA). The WPA
needs to to make sure that enough facilities can be built to manage all
types of waste Surrey produces in the most sustainable way.

2.

The current Surrey Waste Plan was adopted in 2008 and is reaching the
end of its plan period. Surrey County Council is taking steps to review
the Surrey Waste Plan 2008 over the next few years (Figure 1). It is
proposed that the new Surrey Waste Local Plan (SWLP) will cover the
period from 2018 to 2033.

3.

The first stage of public consultation in the preparation of the new SWLP
was the ‘Issues and Options’ stage which set out the context for the
preparation of the SWLP, the vision, objectives and included a ‘Search
for Suitable Land’. This is highlighted in Figure 1 below.

4.

The SWLP is prepared by the county council in its role as WPA. This is
different from its role as Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) which includes
the management of communtity recycling centres (CRCs). Hence, for
example, introducing charging to cover costs at CRCs falls outside the
remit of the SWLP.

Page 23

[RESTRICTED]

Figure 1 Key stages of plan preparation and broad types of
engagement that will occur

• Evidence Gathering
Jan - June
2016

• Issues & Options Consultation*
Sept - Nov
2016

•Consult on vision and objectives, Duty to Cooperate and Call for Sites

• Plan Consultation*
Summer 2017

• Consult on draft policies and proposals and proposed sites for inclusion in the Local
Plan

• Presubmission Consultation*
• Plan that LPA intends to submit to SoS
Autumn 2017

• Consult on relevant legal requirements and tests of 'soundness'

• Submit plan to SoS and examination*
Spring 2018

• Plan submitted to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

• Inspectors Report
Autumn 2018

• Inspector publishes their report along with any recommendations for modifications

• Adopt new Local Plan
Winter 2018

• Revised Local Plan is adopted formally by full council

*Opportunities for comments

Page 24

[RESTRICTED]

Summary of Consultation undertaken
5.

Between 2 September and 25 November 2016 Surrey County Council
consulted on an Issues and Options Paper and a number of supporting
evidence documents as part of the preparation of the SWLP.

6.

A wide range of media (newsletters, website, twitter), correspondence
and meetings was used to inform individuals and organisations about the
new SWLP and seek their comments.

7.

The council’s website supported the consultation through a dedicated
webpage, including links to PDF copies of documents and a link to the
online survey.

8.

A wide range of individuals and organisations were notified at the start of
the consultation by either email or letter. Printed copies of the
documents, along with flyers, were provided in the district and borough
council offices and libraries.

9.

Self-sealing summary and question forms were also available at district
and borough council offices and local libraries. Articles were published in
Surrey Matters (print and e-newsletter) and Surrey Economic Prospects
in September and October 2016.

Response rate
Duty to Cooperate Bodies and Statutory Consultees
10. Twenty four responses were received from Duty to Cooperate (DtC)
bodies and other agencies including; The Environment Agency, Historic
England, Natural England, TfL and Network Rail, two AONB
Management Boards, nine Waste Planning Authorities (WPAs) and six
Surrey district and borough councils.
Operators and Landowners
11. Ten responses were received from site operators and/or landowners on
the Issues and Options Consultation. A further 18 waste operators
provided information on the capacity of their current site to support the
evidence base for the new SWLP. This represented a 33% response rate
from operators, although a number of operators provided information for
multiple sites.
12. Outstanding capacity information is being pursued to help improve the
evidence base.

Page 25

[RESTRICTED]

Residents
13. Over 600 responses were from Surrey residents. Only three parish
councils and/or residents associations responded. Only one action group
responded. This low level response rate from these organisations may
be due to the ‘high level’ nature of the consultation with proposed sites
not being included until the next stage (Draft Plan Consultation Summer
2017).
14. The responses received were a mix of on-line responses, paper
questionnaires, letters and emails. The majority of responses (84%) were
submitted via the online consultation portal with only 16% of responses
submitted in paper form. There was a relatively even split between
respondents in the age categories 35-44, 45-54 and 55-64 and 65+.
There were fewer responses from younger age categories (<35 years).
Businesses
15. Only one business responded to the business survey which was
circulated via Surrey Business Forum. Further work will be required to
engage with the businesses community. Businesses are a major
producer of waste and their views regarding waste production and
management are important.
Results
Overview
16. The majority of respondents were happy with the process proposed to
develop the plan. Those that were unhappy about the process were
mainly residents concerned with previous processes lacking clarity and
transparency.
Issues
17. A number of consultees wanted to see a stronger focus on
environmental protection and other policy designations e.g. Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and Green Belt. Some consultees
helpfully provided updated or improved information that will be
considered as part of the context for the preparation of the plan.
18. A number of respondents noted the difficulties in locating waste facilities
in the county. Including:




The need to avoid areas of high biodiversity and landscape value and
historic significance;
The need to consider residential amenity and highways issues; and
Waste facilities potentially being unable to compete with other more
profitable land uses e.g. housing

Page 26

[RESTRICTED]

19. Industry consultees also reported that recent changes in the resource
management sector have largely been driven by European Union (EU)
legislation and policy. There is considerable uncertainty about the future
direction of UK policy following the referendum and this reinforces the
requirement for flexibility in a new SWLP.
20. The majority of comments were related to detailed aspects of the report
such as specific waste movements, forecasts and potential sites. Many
of these concerns will be covered by evidence based documents for
arisings and capacity on specific waste streams, including:








Municipal/household
Commercial/industrial
Construction/demolition
Low Level Radioactive
Agricultural
Hazardous
Waste water

21. The council will be informally consulting on these documents with
districts and boroughs and other relevant stakeholders in early 2017, this
will be followed by a formal consultation on these documents as part of
the draft plan.
Vision
22. Generally respondents welcomed the wording of the draft vision and the
principles set out in the objectives, particularly the aspiration to minimise
landfill waste through prevention, re-use, recycling, and recovery.
23. Some comments reflected that the vision was too long and contained
jargon. Most comments on the vision related to whether ‘zero waste to
landfill’ was achievable.
24. Overall, the vision was well received and the council will continue to
strive towards managing waste in the most sustainable way and this
includes promoting the management of waste up the waste hierarchy.
Proposed plan period
25. Few comments were received on the proposed plan period. Of those,
two suggested that it might be more suitable to match the plan periods to
borough and district local plans, for example the Local Plans for
Elmbridge and Runnymede cover a period up to 2035.
26. However, responses from operators highlighted the high degree of
uncertainty and the large amount of change occurring in waste markets
therefore they would prefer to see a shorter plan period.
27. The proposed plan period is 15 years from 2018 up to 2033 in
accordance with paragraph 157 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), however the council will review the need to amend
this in the light of the above responses.

Page 27

[RESTRICTED]

Objectives
28. Some respondents identified a need to consider an objective on the
restoration of waste management sites. In particular, restored sites can
be effective in providing net gains for biodiversity and opportunities for
enhancement and improving connectivity. This was linked to other
comments which suggested a greater emphasis was needed on
environmental protection e.g. protection of habitats for wildlife and high
value landscapes.
29. Many respondents supported Surrey County Council in working with
partners including districts and boroughs and other authorities. The
council will continue to work with its partners in particular through the
Duty to Cooperate as policies and proposals are developed.

Conclusions:
30. The Issues and Options Consultation ran for a 12 week period from 2
September to 25 November 2016 and sought stakeholder’s views on the
strategic context, the vision and the objectives for sustainable waste
management in Surrey.
31. A total of 671 responses were received across the different groups of
stakeholders which covered a wide range of topics. The council has
reviewed these comments and produced a summary report of those
responses which will be published on the Minerals and Waste Planning
Policy pages of the council’s website.
32. These comments will be considred the new SWLP is prepared. There
may be minor amendments to the context and issues papers, the draft
vision and the draft objectives. The final reports will published on the
Minerals and Waste Planning Policy webpages.
Recommendations:
33. It is recommended that the Economic Prosperity, Environment and
Highways Board:
a. Note the results of the Issues and Options Consultation related to the
preparation of the new SWLP
b. Note the summary report that sets out the responses to the Issues
and Options Consultation (Annexe 1).

Page 28

[RESTRICTED]

Next steps:
A summary of the responses (Annexe 1) received will be published following
the meeting of the EPEH Board.
The comments made will be reviewed and taken into account as the draft plan
is prepared. The draft plan will be presented to the EPEH Board and Cabinet
before the next stage of consultation commences.
This further round of consultation will be undertaken in July 2017 on the
content of the draft plan. The attached report will be updated and republished
alongside the draft version of the new SWLP to include detail as to how the
council has responded to the issues raised.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contact: Katelyn Symington, Principal Planning Policy Officer,
Minerals and Waste
Contact details: Tel: 020 8541 7933,
Email:Katelyn.Symington@Surreycc.gov.uk
Sources/background papers:
Annexe 1 Issues and Options Consultation Summary of Responses Report

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Surrey County Council Waste Planning

Surrey Waste Local Plan
2018–2033

Issues & Options
Summary of Responses
Report
Version 0.1

December 2016

Page 31

Issues & Options Response Report

This page has intentionally been left blank

Page 32

Table of Contents |3

Table of Contents
Table of Contents ............................................................................................................. 3
Executive Summary ......................................................................................................... 4
1

Introduction ................................................................................................................ 6
1.1

Preparing a new Surrey Waste Local Plan.......................................................... 6

1.2

Issues and Options Consultation ........................................................................ 7

2

Summary of consultation undertaken ........................................................................ 7

3

Duty to Cooperate bodies .......................................................................................... 8

4

5

3.1

Duty to Cooperate ............................................................................................... 8

3.2

Overview ............................................................................................................. 8

3.3

Context................................................................................................................ 9

3.4

Issues................................................................................................................ 11

3.5

Draft Vision ....................................................................................................... 12

3.6

Draft Objectives ................................................................................................ 13

3.7

Options.............................................................................................................. 14

3.8

Criteria for Suitable Land Assessment .............................................................. 16

3.9

Duty to Cooperate ............................................................................................. 18

Operators and Landowners ..................................................................................... 20
4.1

Overview ........................................................................................................... 20

4.1

Context.............................................................................................................. 20

4.2

Issues................................................................................................................ 21

4.3

Draft Vision ....................................................................................................... 21

4.4

Draft Objectives ................................................................................................ 22

4.1

Options.............................................................................................................. 22

Businesses .............................................................................................................. 24
5.1

6

Difficulties Contacting Businesses .................................................................... 24

Residents................................................................................................................. 25
6.1

Statement of Community Involvement .............................................................. 25

6.2

Overview ........................................................................................................... 26

6.3

Identified Issues ................................................................................................ 26

6.4

Other Issues for consideration .......................................................................... 27

6.5

Draft Vision ....................................................................................................... 29

6.6

Other Comments ............................................................................................... 30

Appendix 1 – Types of Consultees................................................................................. 31
Appendix 2 – Duty to Cooperate Bodies and other Agencies ........................................ 32
Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response
Report

Page 33

Executive Summary |4

Executive Summary


Between 2 September and 25 November 2016 Surrey County Council consulted on an
Issues and Options Paper and a number of supporting documents as part of the
preparation for the new Surrey Waste Local Plan (SWLP 2018).



The Issues and Options Paper was the first formal opportunity for stakeholders to
contribute to the new SWLP 2018 and set out the strategic (spatial and policy) context for
waste management and explored the overall scale of need for additional waste
management facilities in Surrey over the Plan period.



A wide range of media (newsletters, website, twitter), correspondence and meetings was
used to inform individuals and organisations about the new SWLP and seek their
comments.



Twenty four responses were received from Duty to Cooperate (DtC) bodies and other
agencies including; the Environment Agency, Historic England, Natural England, Transport
for London (TfL) and Network Rail, two Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)
Management Boards, two Statutory Water Undertakers, nine Waste Planning Authorities
(WPAs) and six Surrey district and borough councils.



Ten responses were received from waste site operators and/or landowners.



Six hundred and thirteen representations were received from the public (See Appendix 3 for
a map showing responses per borough and district). Only three parish councils and/or
residents associations responded. Only one action group responded.



The responses were received as a mix of on-line responses, paper questionnaires, letters
and emails.



Generally, respondents supported the draft vision and the principles set out in the draft
objectives. Particularly the aspiration to minimise landfill waste through prevention, re-use,
recycling, and recovery. Most comments on the draft vision related to whether ‘zero waste
to landfill’ was achievable.



A number of responses commented that a greater emphasis was needed on environmental
protection, in particular DtC bodies recommended that the objectives address the issues of
safeguarding habitats for wildlife and high value landscapes.



There was strong support for partnership working, including between Surrey County
Council, district and borough councils and other authorities. The Council will continue to
work with our partners in particular through the DtC around specific sites or areas identified
as suitable for waste use.



All the issues raised will be addressed and the vision and objectives refined. The responses
will also inform the spatial strategy for the new SWLP. A further round of consultation will
be undertaken in July 2017 on the content of a draft plan.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 34

Executive Summary |5
If you have any questions about the consultation or you are having difficulty in accessing
the documents please contact Surrey County Council:

Contact Us
 Phone: 03456 009 009
 Email: wasteplan@surreycc.gov.uk
 Letter: Planning and Development Service,
Room 385 County Hall, Penrhyn Road,
Kingston upon Thames, KT1 2DW

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 35

Introduction |6

1

Introduction
1.1

Preparing a new Surrey Waste Local Plan

1.1.1

Waste management infrastructure is essential to support a modern economy. It is
crucial that we plan for waste related development to ensure there are sufficient
facilities to manage waste sustainably.

1.1.2

Waste Local Plans set out the planning framework for the development of waste
management facilities and are used in determining planning applications for waste
facilities. The current Surrey Waste Plan was adopted in 2008. Since it was adopted
in 2008 a number of new challenges have arisen, including:

1.1.3



Changes in the policy landscape and approaches to plan-making.



Evolution of waste management technologies and approaches.



Current and emerging local conditions including pressure to release allocated
waste sites to alternative development.



Changes in patterns of waste production.
It is essential that the Waste Local Plan is kept up to date to provide a robust policy
framework to support the sustainable management of waste. The new Surrey Waste
Local Plan (SWLP) will cover the period from 2018 to 2033 and will help to ensure
that Surrey is able to provide sufficient waste management capacity and ensure
waste is managed in the most sustainable way.

Figure 1 Key stages in delivering the Surrey Waste Local Plan 2018 – 2033

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 36

Summary of consultation undertaken |7

1.2

Issues and Options Consultation

1.2.1

Between 2 September and 25 November 2016 Surrey County Council consulted on
an ‘Issues and Options Paper’ as part of the preparation of the new Surrey Waste
Local Plan.

1.2.2

The Issues and Options Paper sought views on the strategic context, the vision and
the objectives for sustainable waste management in Surrey. The paper was
supported by a number of technical papers which were also made available on the
council’s website. These included:


Background Policy Paper No 1: Context and Issues



Background Policy Paper No 2: Capacity Estimate Scoping Statement



Background Policy Paper No 3: Assessment of Suitable Land Scoping
Statement



Background Policy Paper No 4: Duty to Cooperate Scoping Statement

1.2.3

A ‘Search for Suitable Land’ was linked to this consultation which gave particular
stakeholders, including landowners, the opportunity to propose areas of land, which
might be suitable for waste management, for allocation in the SWLP.

1.2.4

This document provides a summary of the responses received to the Issues and
Options consultation and supporting documents. This is in accordance with the
council’s Statement of Community Involvement (adopted in 2015) (see Section 6.1).

1.2.5

This document sets out some initial views on the council’s response to the issues
raised. Fuller responses will be prepared as the plan progresses and these will
published in an updated version of this document alongside the draft version of the
new SWLP.

2

Summary of consultation undertaken
2.1.1

Surrey County Council used a wide range of media (newsletters, website, twitter),
correspondence and meetings to inform individuals and organisations about the new
SWLP Plan and to seek their comments.

2.1.2

The council’s website supported the consultation through a dedicated webpage,
including links to PDF copies of documents and a link to the online survey.

2.1.3

Notification was made at the start of the consultation to a wide range of individuals
and organisation by either email or letter. Printed copies of the documents, along
with flyers, were provided in the district and borough council offices and libraries.

2.1.4

Self-sealing summary and question forms were also available at district and borough
council offices and local libraries. Articles were carried in Surrey Matters (print and
e-newsletter) and Surrey Economic Prospects in September and October 2016.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 37

Duty to Cooperate bodies |8

3

Duty to Cooperate bodies
3.1

Duty to Cooperate

3.1.1

Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)
places a duty on Local Planning Authorities (LPAs), in preparing local plans, to
“engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis” with other relevant
organisations to maximise the effectiveness with which plan preparation is
undertaken.

3.1.2

Methods of implementing the Duty to Cooperate (DtC) are set out in both the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012) and the national Planning
Practice Guidance (nPPG) (2014). Under the DtC, Local Planning Authorities are
expected to work ‘collaboratively with other bodies to ensure that strategic priorities
across local authority boundaries are properly coordinated and clearly reflected in
local plans’ (paragraph 179 of the NPPF).

3.1.3

The DtC applies to specific bodies as set out in the relevant legislation and
guidance. Section 110 of the Localism Act 2011, places a legal duty on Local
Planning Authorities to cooperate with one another; county councils and other
prescribed bodies. Those prescribed bodies are identified in identified in Regulation
4 of The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
(as amended).

3.1.4

As part of preparing the new SWLP, the WPA will need to take account of, and as
appropriate align with, other planning policy (including emerging and updated). This
will include minerals and waste plans from adjoining authorities, changes to national
planning policy and other local (district or borough council and neighbourhood)
plans.

3.1.5

In order to demonstrate how the council is discharging its duty, a ‘Duty to Cooperate
Scoping Statement’ was prepared which sets out who the Council is engaging with
throughout the development of the new SWLP, on what matters and how and when
this is happening. The Council consulted on the Scoping Statement as part of the
Issues and Options Consultation between September and November 2016.

3.2

Overview

3.2.1

Twenty four responses were received from DtC bodies and other statutory
consultees including; The Environment Agency, Historic England, Natural England,
TfL and Network Rail, nine WPAs and six Surrey district and borough councils. In
addition, responses were received from two AONB Management Boards who, while
not strictly covered under the DtC, were felt to fit best within this section of the
report. The list of those DtC bodies (as well as other organisations) who responded
is included in Appendix 2.

3.2.2

The majority of comments were related to detailed aspects of the report such as
specific waste movements, forecasts and potential sites. Many of these concerns
will be addressed in evidence based documents on specific waste streams. The
council will be informally consulting on these documents in early 2017 and formally
consulting on them alongside the draft plan.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 38

Duty to Cooperate bodies |9

3.3

Context
Policy

3.3.1

One WPA suggested that references to Landfill Directive (1999/31/EC) and Water
Framework Directive (Water FD) (2000/60/EC) could be included.

3.3.2

It was noted that there are a number of new planning policy documents being
prepared by district and borough councils within Surrey which the new SWLP will
need to take account of. These documents may include areas and sites for new
housing developments which may affect the planned waste arisings and the need
for new waste facilities.

3.3.3

New policies being developed by district and borough councils may also constrain
potential waste sites, this includes sites which allocate or provide criteria for
employment use. The council will try to discourage policies in local plans which
unnecessarily show prejudice against waste facilities especially given that these
facilities vary in their size, scale and impacts and can contribute to employment and
productivity.

3.3.4

The Council will work with district and borough councils to ensure that waste
facilities can be delivered alongside other types of growth.
Housing figures

3.3.5

There was some concern raised by the district and borough councils over the use of
the Surrey Infrastructure Study figures in describing the context for housing growth
in Surrey. These figures are based on expected delivery of houses for each Surrey
district and borough for July 2015 and are based on 2012 Office of National
Statistics (ONS) projections which have now been superseded by 2014 figures.

3.3.6

It was also suggested that there was a need to identify locations in different parts of
the County where specific issues relating to the management of waste are likely to
arise due to population and employment increases. It is recognised that this spatial
approach will be important in developing the council’s spatial strategy.
Waste Arisings

3.3.7

3.3.8

It was requested that additional documents should be produced over the course of
preparing the new Surrey Waste Local Plan to give more information about:


Imports and exports of waste to and from Surrey



Specialist types of waste (e.g. hazardous, medical etc.)



Location of the landfill sites



Location of current waste sites

It is the Council’s intention to prepare a number of reports including technical studies
for a) waste arisings and b) existing waste capacity that will address these matters.
These reports will be formally consulted on alongside the draft plan.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 39

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 10
Environmental Protection
3.3.9

Generally, consultees were pleased to see that the main potential issues regarding
biodiversity and the natural environment had been highlighted. Indeed, some
consultees suggested that environmental information could be expanded to provide
more details. For example, the Environment Agency provided useful information on
groundwater.

3.3.10

Natural England recommend that further consideration is given to the re-use of
waste for mineral site restoration where there is a biodiversity benefit i.e. for habitat
creation/restoration projects.

3.3.11

The information provided will be reviewed and taken into account when ensuring
that the plan provides appropriate environmental protection.
Green Belt

3.3.12

A number of Surrey district and borough councils suggested that stronger emphasis
was required for land designated as Green Belt. Responses highlighted that Green
Belt is an important policy designation and the approach being taken should be
clarified. Specifically, this was related to the process for selecting sites and the
considerations to be taken into account when considering development in the Green
Belt. This will be taken into account in the draft Plan.
Transport

3.3.13

3.3.14

The County Highway Authority have responded with additional information which
outlines in more detail the planning context with respect to transport. This included
amendments to:


Issues and Options Consultation Report: Section 3.3. Transport with
references to the Freight Strategy (STP 2011-2026).



Policy Paper 1 Context and Issues: Transport Infrastructure: Heavy Goods
Vehicles (3.5.1) and Transport Infrastructure and HGV Movements
(Appendix 5)

This information will need to be considered and the relevant documents reviewed.
Plan period

3.3.15

Several Surrey district and borough councils suggested that the plan period could be
longer to align better with local plans being developed by some Surrey district and
borough councils. The challenge for the county council is that all local plans are
being developed with slightly different plan periods and therefore there is unlikely to
be one suitable plan period.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 40

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 11

3.4

Issues
Visual Impact

3.4.1

The Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Management Board
and High Weald AONB Management Board have suggested that greater emphasis
could be placed on conserving the landscape and scenic beauty of an AONB.

3.4.2

The High Weald AONB Management Board suggested that it was important to
recognise the balance to be struck between the landscape and visual impact of
certain types of waste management activity and agricultural productivity/rural
economy e.g. Anaerobic Digestion (AD), wood recycling and other farm based
facilities.
Deliverability

3.4.3

One consultee raised the issue of deliverability of new facilities and their funding.
The council acknowledges that deliverability of sites may be an issue given that
compared to other types of land use e.g. residential or commercial, waste use may
be considered a relatively low value one.

3.4.4

It is considered unlikely that CIL would contribute to the development of new sites,
but in some instances may be justified and welcomed as part of the necessary
infrastructure to facilitate housing growth e.g. within a new settlement.
London’s waste

3.4.5

The consultation documentation recognised that regionally-derived targets, including
provision for accepting London’s waste, were no longer in force. However, one
consultee suggested that guidance is considered to address paragraph 44 in the
nPPG which states: “given the unique waste needs of London, there is likely to be a
need for waste planning authorities surrounding London to take some of London’s
waste”.

3.4.6

It is acknowledged that there may be significant waste movements between London
and authorities surrounding London such as Surrey. The intention is to address
these under the DtC as outlined in the DtC Scoping Statement.
Strategic infrastructure

3.4.7

Several consultees suggested that the new SWLP should include provision for
waste arising from an expanded Heathrow Airport as well as the development and
construction phase of any expansion. In addition, TfL and Network Rail raised
issues of land required near at least one existing waste site to facilitate Crossrail 2.

3.4.8

The council is aware of a number of major infrastructure projects e.g. Heathrow
Airport expansion, HS2, Cross Rail 2 and River Thames Scheme, and recognises
the need to account for the potential impact of these projects on waste arisings and
consider what type(s) of strategic provision may need to be provided.

3.4.9

This will be done by identifying those strategic infrastructure projects which may
produce large amounts of waste. Discussions will then be needed to determine how
much of this is likely to be managed in Surrey. Once it is known how much waste is
likely to be expected, it can be determined if any additional capacity is required.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 41

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 12

3.5
3.5.1

Draft Vision
Overall, the draft vision was supported by consultees (Figure 1). All consultees were
supportive of the vision being positive and the general aim which is to drive waste
management up the waste hierarchy.

Ambitious

Positive

Strongly agree

Slightly agree

Neither

Slightly disagree

Achievable

Strongly disagree

Figure 1 Result of Duty to Cooperate bodies views of the vision (%)

Targets for landfill
3.5.2

The majority of comments on the draft vision related to whether ‘zero waste to
landfill’ was achievable. Most supported the aspiration to minimise landfill waste
through prevention, re-use, recycling, and recovery however, felt that the target of
no waste to landfill was unrealistic.

3.5.3

Some suggested that this target could apply to one or more waste streams where
specified. For example, there is already a high diversion rate from landfill for
household waste however is it appreciated that there will always be some residual
waste which will need to be sent to landfill.

3.5.4

Although the vision is intended to be ambitious and aspirational, its appropriateness
will be reviewed. The emphasis will continue to be that the vision should set a high
standard for sustainable waste management in Surrey..
Managing our own waste

3.5.5

A few comments were made in respect of a lack of clarity in the vision. Specifically
these were:
a) No clear mechanism or criteria were included for how economic benefits of
waste management will be shared with communities
b) Asking residents and businesses to take ownership of the waste they produce
was confusing

3.5.6

Again, this may require a review of the vision wording to make sure it is clear and
accessible to a range of stakeholders.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 42

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 13
Biodiversity
3.5.7

3.6

One consultee commented that the vision could further encourage protection and
enhancement of the environment by including net gains for biodiversity and
opportunities for enhancement and improving connectivity. The council will consider
this as the vision wording is reviewed to ensure appropriate protection and
enhancement of the natural and historic environments.

Draft Objectives
Working with our partners

3.6.1

Many comments picked up on the fact that Surrey is a two-tier authority area and
that there was a strongly positive response to the council working with district and
borough councils and our other partners in preparing the new SWLP.
Environmental Protection

3.6.2

Natural England recommended that the vision and objectives address impacts and
opportunities for the natural environment with particular strategic approach to the
protection and enhancement of the natural environment.

3.6.3

Historic England noted that heritage assets such as Registered Parks and Gardens,
Scheduled Monuments, and archaeological resources generally, are most likely to
be affected by waste management facilities.

3.6.4

Historic England suggested that rewording some of the objectives would help to
promote the conservation of the natural and built environments, specifically that
Objective 6 was amended with the addition “and the historic and natural
environment”.

3.6.5

As mentioned above both the Surrey Hills and High Weald AONBs suggested that a
greater emphasis be placed on valuing protected landscapes. This will be
considered during the preparation for the new SWLP.
Restoration

3.6.6

Multiple respondents suggested that the objectives should also refer to ensuring
restoration of waste management sites to ensure sustainable after uses to benefit
the communities particularly given the ambition to divert waste away from landfill.
This was reinforced by comments from Natural England which stated that the new
SWLP should aim for a net gain for biodiversity considering opportunities for
enhancement and improving connectivity with an emphasis on designated
environmental assets.

3.6.7

The council has published a supplementary planning document on site restoration,
which focuses on minerals sites but also applies where waste facilities are linked to
a minerals related development (such as aggregates recycling and landfill).
Nevertheless, if there are sites which are suitable for temporary waste uses and
these are not linked to a minerals development, then an objective specifically for the
restoration of waste management sites may be needed.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 43

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 14

3.7

Options
Objective 1: To increase the sustainable management of waste through waste
prevention, re-use, recycling and recovery

3.7.1

Majority of responses strongly supported the option to work with our stakeholders to
prioritise the management of waste through prevention, re-use, recycling and
recovery. In addition, responses supported the option to reduce the waste sent to
landfill by encouraging other types of facilities, but recognising that landfill is a last
resort and one which still needs to be planned for. This accepts that some landfill
may still be required as a contingency measure or as the most suitable treatment
method for certain types of waste.
Objective 2: To encourage communities and businesses to take responsibility for
their own waste

3.7.2

There was support for options seeking to promote the management of waste in
locations close to the sources of waste arisings, subject to consideration of local
amenity. However, consultees also noted that in Surrey there is likely to be strong
competition for land for housing and employment around existing communities and
businesses which may affect the deliverability of sites.
Objective 3: To ensure new waste management facilities are developed in
suitable locations

3.7.3

The principle that waste should be managed – where possible – close to where it
arises was supported but the importance of residential amenity considerations of
existing and future residents was stressed.

3.7.4

Consultees supported a collaborative approach between the county council and the
borough and district councils in order to explore options for locating facilities near to
key centres of population. One consultee suggested that to avoid conflict the
intention should be to locate facilities alongside areas identified for other uses,
rather than within them.

3.7.5

Consultees stressed the need to identify specific sites as it was considered that
broad areas were not sufficiently clear or robust. Alongside this, a number of Surrey
district and borough councils welcomed the opportunity to be consulted on sites and
areas as early as possible.

3.7.6

Under this objective, Thames Water highlighted the continued need for a specific
wastewater/sewage sludge treatment policy as this type of waste management has
different geographical and technical requirements compared to other forms of waste
management. The council recognises that a specific policy for wastewater will need
to be included in the new SWLP.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 44

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 15
Objective 4: To make the best use of land when managing waste
3.7.7

It was noted that locating waste facilities at industrial locations with non-waste uses,
if appropriate, could reduce impacts to residential amenity as such sites are likely to
already be suitable for heavy vehicle movements. However, there will be strong
competition for such land in Surrey given the limited amount of employment land. In
addition, the council will need to ensure that this will not conflict with proposed
district and borough council policies which have designated areas as safeguarded
employment sites.

3.7.8

Some consultees preferred the improvement and enhancement of existing facilities,
as the option which was most likely to require the least use of additional land.
Although this was caveated by the need to consider local amenity and accessibility
issues in identifying potential site options.

3.7.9

A number of Surrey district and borough councils were concerned about locating
facilities in land designated as Green Belt. Some supported the potential location of
waste management facilities in the Green Belt as long as the approach was
compliant with the NPPF policy on uses in the Green Belt (paragraph 89 to 91,
NPPF). Further to this, some commented that the allocation of sites in the Green
Belt should only take place if exceptional circumstances can also be proven and
after all areas or sites that are not within the Green Belt have been assessed and
found unsuitable.

3.7.10

Several consultees supported the prioritisation of locating waste management uses
on previously developed land. However, some noted that there was concern that
this might result in competition for a small amount of available employment land
between waste infrastructure and other employment or industrial uses. In addition,
issues with sustainability, including accessibility considerations, would need to be
taken into account with regards to the appropriateness of using redundant
agricultural buildings.

3.7.11

Natural England noted that they did not support allowing development on greenfield
sites. Some other consultees stated that this option should only be pursued as part
of a sequential approach to sites, whereby greenfield sites are only considered after
all sites in the urban area and those on Previously Developed Land have been
utilised or are found to be unsuitable. The council will need to consider this when
looking at how land is assessed to be suitable for waste use.

3.7.12

Nearly all consultees stated that only those waste management facilities in locations
which are consistent with the vision and objectives of the plan should be
safeguarded.
Objective 5: To maximise the economic benefits of waste management

3.7.13

There was strong support for options which encourage the re-use and recycling of
construction waste and the use of recycled materials in construction. There was less
support for developing sites which may contribute to employment and productivity in
the local area.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 45

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 16
3.7.14

Promoting the benefits that the waste management sector, which provides
employment and contributes to the local economy, is an additional area of work for
the council. In particular, this is important for ensuring that any policies for
employment land in district and borough Local Plans do not exclude certain types of
waste uses.
Objective 6: To encourage innovation and new technologies which provide
opportunities to minimise the impact of waste development on communities and
businesses

3.7.15

Comments related to Objective 6 agreed that facilities should be well-designed,
well-constructed and well operated. However, more information was required about
what this meant recognising that different types, scales and locations of facilities will
have different capacities and constraints.

3.7.16

Historic England suggested that Objective 6 could be supported by the inclusion of
an additional option such as: “Avoid, or where unavoidable minimise or mitigate, the
impact of waste facilities on sites and areas of high historic or natural environment
value and significance”. All options including those provided by consultees will be
considered as the new SWLP is developed.
Objective 7: To support the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions through
sustainable management of waste

3.7.17

It is recognised that Surrey is constrained in options for sustainable transport for
waste as movements by rail and water are difficult. However, the council strongly
considers that there should be an aspiration to manage waste as sustainably as
possible and this should include how waste is transported.

3.7.18

Consultees supported the option to minimise the need for transport by locating new
facilities in proximity to population centres, but stressed that residential amenity,
accessibility and sustainability matters will need to be taken into account by the
council as options are developed and appraised.

3.8

Criteria for Suitable Land Assessment
Sites and areas suitable for waste related development

3.8.1

Consultees stated a preference to see specific sites identified for waste
infrastructure, rather than broad areas in order to provide certainty to not only
borough and district councils but also to residents and businesses who may be
impacted by these facilities.

3.8.2

Furthermore, one WPA suggested that the process for assessing suitable land (not
the criteria) was unclear and cautioned using a binary method for including sites.
They recommended using a ‘Red Amber Green’ (RAG) approach instead, given the
difficulties in finding suitable sites in the South East.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 46

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 17
Land designated as Green Belt
3.8.3

District and borough councils suggested that under ‘potential land use conflict’ the
criteria could be expanded in order to differentiate between land within the urban
area, previously developed land, greenfield sites and land covered by Green Belt
designation.

3.8.4

Furthermore, that the description of “inappropriate development” should reflect the
policy in the NPPF i.e. it is not only new buildings which are inappropriate in the
Green Belt and in fact any development may affect openness.
Areas designated for landscape value

3.8.5

Comments from the Surrey Hills and High Weald AONB Boards suggested the need
for a stronger emphasis on designated landscapes. In particular, they were keen to
see that sites of least environmental value are selected. It was suggested the
council could do this by ensuring land allocations avoid designated landscapes and
consider the direct and indirect effects of development on land within the setting of
designated landscapes.

3.8.6

The Surrey Hills and High Weald AONB Boards helpfully suggested amended
wording for the Assessment of Suitable Land Scoping Statement which was:
“Sites for strategic waste facilities (i.e. serving more than their immediate
community) should not be taken any further in the Assessment unless it has been
demonstrated there are no suitable alternative sites outside the AONB.”
Areas designated for biodiversity value

3.8.7

The Environment Agency also provided suggested wording to the Assessment of
Suitable Land Scoping Statement to include:
“Sites that are known, or may have established populations of BAP priority species
and S41 species to also be evaluated on a case by case basis”
“Sites that are partly or wholly within SNCIs should not be considered”

3.8.8

Natural England requested that all relevant Sites of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSIs), European sites (Special Areas of Conservation and Special Protect Areas)
and Ramsar sites should be included on the proposals map for the area so they can
be clearly identified in the context of proposed development allocations and policies
for development.
Water environment

3.8.9

The Environment Agency agreed that Flood Zones 2 and 3 should be identified as
"preliminary criteria" and that landfill sites and waste management facilities for
hazardous waste will not be considered in Flood Zones 2 and 3. They also advised
that waste treatment is "not compatible" with Flood Zone 3b (see tables 2 and 3 of
the nPPG) and that when selecting sites, opportunities should be sought to reduce
the risk and impact of flooding.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 47

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 18
3.8.10

For criteria related to "surface water catchments", the Environment Agency advises
that all sites within catchments of surface watercourses (i.e. those that have
pathways to a watercourse) should be evaluated on a case by case basis, not just
those that are exhibiting ‘poor’ ecological status. This is consistent with the Water
Framework Directive that seeks to prevent deterioration in ecological status of all
waterbodies.
Aerodrome safeguarding

3.8.11

Gatwick Airport responded with suggested changes to the Assessment of Suitable
Land Scoping Statement as follows:
“Section 6.2.3 ‘Selection Criteria’ request that ‘Aerodrome safeguarding
considerations’ are added to that list.
Appendix 2 ‘Draft Site Selection Criteria’ Under part i ‘Vermin & Birds’ other factors
that need to be taken into consideration for example the heights of buildings &
structures, lighting, renewable energy, gas flaring etc. Therefore we would ask that
part i) ‘Vermin & Birds’ be replaced with the following: i) Aerodrome Safeguarding
Criterion: Wildlife strike hazard risk, Heights of buildings & structures, Lighting,
Renewable energy, Gas flaring.
Secondary Criteria: Sites within the Gatwick Aerodrome 15km Safeguarding Zone
will be evaluated on a case by case basis.”
Transport

3.8.12

One consultee highlighted that greater emphasis should be placed on the road
network in relation to waste management. They suggested that under secondary
criteria the final line should be amended to “Roads will need to be suitable for HGVs
and sites should not be reliant on unclassified local roads”.

3.8.13

Comments on this matter were also received from the County Highway Authority
that suggested the following changes to the section on Highways Capacity:


Criteria: Sites that would generate a 30% HGV movement increase on the
adjoining network will be evaluated on a case by case basis.
The sites will be evaluated to determine the suitability of the access
arrangements and the safe and suitable use of the public highway within the
immediate area.



3.9
3.9.1

Related Policies: Specific guidance exists within existing Local Plans
regarding HGV movements and can be agreed via securing routing during
the planning stage (i.e. via conditions)

Duty to Cooperate Scoping Statement
All consultees supported the principle of meaningful, early and on-going
engagement with DtC bodies in the creation of the new SWLP. All but one consultee
accepting that the DtC Scoping Statement would help the council in discharging its
duty.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 48

D u t y t o C o o p e r a t e b o d i e s | 19
3.9.2

The one consultee who did not accept this felt that, although the framework was a
useful starting point, it would need to be implemented and evidenced throughout the
preparation of the local plan in order for the council to discharge its duty.

3.9.3

In addition, one consultee commented that the current statement lists the authorities
that receive significant waste exports from Surrey but not those authorities that
export waste to Surrey.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 49

O p e r a t o r s a n d L a n d o w n e r s | 20

4

Operators and Landowners
4.1
4.1.1

4.1

Overview
Ten responses were received from site operators and/or landowners on the issues
and options consultation. A further 18 operators provided information on the
capacity of their current site to support the evidence base for the new SWLP
although a number of operators provided information for multiple sites. Outstanding
capacity information will be pursued by the council.

Context
Housing figures

4.1.1

Operators picked up on the number of local authorities in Surrey who are currently
preparing Local Plans which cover different plan periods. It was suggested that the
new SWLP should be sufficiently flexible and provide sufficient allocated sites
(including the possibility of reserved sites) to meet the highest levels of growth
suggested in these plans.

4.1.2

The council will be working with district and borough councils to make sure that the
amount of waste arisings being planned for in the new SWLP is proportionate to the
growth that these councils are expecting.
Waste Arisings

4.1.3

Operators highlighted the need to plan for waste arising from existing and planned
development, including housing and employment sites, using appropriate forecasts
to evaluate the need over the length of the plan period. Many noted that they were
unable to comment on the predicted waste arisings at this time but would be
interested in what waste arisings the Council is planning for.

4.1.4

One operator pointed out that certain waste streams in particular are problematic in
Surrey, including; green waste, wood waste and residual waste suitable for energy
recovery as the County has a lack of these types of facilities.
Deliverability

4.1.5

Nearly all operators who responded to the consultation commented on the highly
competitive nature of the property market in the south east. In Surrey and adjoining
London boroughs this has led to allocated sites being lost to alternative, higher
value land uses such as for housing as many types of waste management facilities
cannot compete with other more profitable land uses.

4.1.6

Some operators considered that the co-location of facilities could help make
schemes more financially attractive and therefore sites less likely to be lost to
alternative uses.

4.1.7

In addition, operators noted that it is often difficult to raise the necessary funding to
promote and secure planning permission for waste facilities, particularly given the
complex nature of the planning system. Operators also encouraged the allocation of
specific sites to provide certainty to site promoters.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 50

O p e r a t o r s a n d L a n d o w n e r s | 21
Plan period
4.1.8

Due to the speed of transition in the industry, operators were adamant regarding the
need for flexibility.

4.1.9

In terms of the plan period some considered that a maximum plan period of 10 years
would be more appropriate. Others recognised that the 15 year time frame was in
line with the NPPF and was suitable for a strategic plan, but again made it clear that
the new SWLP should have sufficient flexibility to respond to changes in the
industry.

4.1.10

Operators also highlighted that most of the recent changes in the resource
management sector have largely been driven by European Union (EU) legislation.
There is now a large amount of uncertainty about the future direction of UK policy
following the June referendum. Again, emphasising the need for flexibility to be able
to respond to policy changes.

4.2

Issues
Environmental Protection

4.2.1

Operators acknowledged Surrey’s high quality environment, which is in part a key
driver for the significant demand for new housing and employment land, however
strongly supported the idea that opportunities exist within the County’s environment
for waste management facilities. In addition, some pointed out that well-operated
facilities which manage waste sustainably do themselves provide an environmental
benefit which was not adequately recognised in the documentation.
Transport

4.2.2

4.3

One operator supported the WPA in encouraging the transportation of waste to
waste management facilities by means other than the road network. Others noted
that while in other areas of the country they are able to use other means of
transporting waste (e.g. rail), this was very difficult in Surrey, however it was
acknowledged that there were a range of options which could help to encourage
more sustainable transport by road.

Draft Vision

4.3.1

Operators noted the ambition to eliminate waste to landfill by 2033 but commented
that this was unlikely to be achievable. While they supported the emphasis on
reduction, reuse and recycling, they noted that landfill remains the only treatment
method for difficult to manage and uncommon waste streams and it is still significant
in treating the residues from waste recycling and treatment facilities.

4.3.2

Operators agreed that it is likely that there will always be some need for some
strategic landfill facilities for residual material that cannot be managed elsewhere.
Therefore the council should be taking steps to safeguard landfill resources. Nearly
all operators suggested that Surrey County Council should work with other waste
planning authorities to ensure that the need for landfill is recognised and landfill
facilities are provided, locally or regionally.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 51

O p e r a t o r s a n d L a n d o w n e r s | 22

4.4

Draft Objectives
Competition for land

4.4.1

As noted above, operators were concerned with the competition for land in Surrey
and adjoining London boroughs. More than one operator suggested that the council
should make appropriate provision to take some waste from south and west London.
Safeguarding

4.4.2

4.1

With respect to safeguarding, there was a mix of views whereby some operators
supported only those sites which were consistent with the vision and objectives of
the plan being safeguarded, while others believed that all existing waste
management facilities should be safeguarded, including landfill.

Options
Objective 1: To increase the sustainable management of waste through waste
prevention, re-use, recycling and recovery

4.1.1

One operator noted that Surrey currently does not have any energy from waste
(EfW) capacity (the facility at Charlton Lane has permission but is not yet
operational) and a large proportion of waste is currently sent outside the County for
treatment. Therefore, it was suggested, adequate provision should be made within
the new SWLP to provide sufficient capacity in waste treatment sites to
accommodate waste currently sent out of the county for treatment in line with the
proximity principle.

4.1.2

More generally, operators considered that this objective was important and that
additional provision of waste treatment facilities were needed to meet this objective,
including waste recovery plants that will handle non-recyclable waste.
Objective 2: To encourage communities and businesses to take responsibility for
their own waste

4.1.3

Operators supported the WPA working with key stakeholders to ensure that waste
prevention, re-use, recycling and recovery targets are met. They supported the
council undertaking early and meaningful engagement with local communities and
working collaboratively with other planning authorities through the Duty to
Cooperate.

4.1.4

However, operators did not agree that waste management facilities should be
located near to communities due to issues with locating sensitive uses near to
operational sites. In particular this may result in the loss of the benefits of allocating
larger facilities, such as economy of scale. There were also issues associated with
facilitating other forms of development as part of a wider mixed-use development.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 52

O p e r a t o r s a n d L a n d o w n e r s | 23
Objective 3: To ensure new waste management facilities are developed in
suitable locations
4.1.5

Operators noted that, as indicated in the National Planning Policy for Waste
(NPPW), waste management facilities are often controversial in nature and again
emphasised the difficulties with locating waste management facilities near to key
population centres given the likely constraints (including highways and
environmental) and public amenity.

4.1.6

Under this objective, Thames Water highlighted the continued need for a specific
wastewater/sewage sludge treatment policy as this type of waste management has
different geographical and technical requirements from other forms of waste
management. The need to include a specific policy for wastewater in the new SWLP
is recognised by the council.
Objective 4: To make the best use of land when managing waste

4.1.7

As outlined earlier, operators noted the issues around competition for available land
with more profitable land uses, alongside this, the amount of land in Surrey that is
identified as Green Belt. Operators suggested there could be a need to look at land
designated as Green Belt that was not previously developed land when identifying
suitable sites. However, they noted this would need to be justified through the
identification of the need for new facilities.

4.1.8

Some operators saw merit in co-locating waste facilities within areas of non-waste
developments, including industrial estates as these proposals may offer additional
benefits such as using by-products from waste recovery, facilitating other forms of
development or providing local jobs and economic growth.

4.1.9

However, others noted that modern industrial estates are unlikely to be fit for waste
use due to a number of factors including:

4.1.10



The competition for sites: Industrial sites are limited in the South East and
therefore may have low vacancy rates, high rents or be more selective of
tenants



Sites have a common owner: Often these sites can be owned by investment
companies who obtain income from rent and who prefer to rent to higher
value industries



Sites are primarily designed for moving goods: The built structure is based
on storage uses which are transporting goods and is not suitable for waste
or waste vehicles. This can include issues like inadequate height of eaves or
raised platforms present in loading bays.



The need for storage areas: Due to the need to generate the most rent, sites
are predominantly covered by buildings whereas typically waste uses require
large external storage areas

The exceptions to this are sites which are bespoke or built specifically for waste
uses. However, other disused buildings outside of industrial estates such as
abandoned farms and old aerodromes can make good sites provided they have
good access.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 53

B u s i n e s s e s | 24
4.1.11

The council will need to consider these comments as it seeks to identify suitable
areas of land for waste development.
Objective 5: To maximise the economic benefits of waste management

4.1.12

Some operators have provided information to support the economic benefits which
waste businesses provide to the local economy including details of the employment
generated by their sites. Some provided information about the likely investment and
other economic gains associated with the development. Generally, the council
recognises the positive contribution the waste management sector provides to the
economy within the local area.
Objective 6: To encourage innovation and new technologies which provide
opportunities to minimise the impact of waste development on communities and
businesses

4.1.13

Operators’ main concern with Objective 6 was that it failed to demonstrate how it
would encourage innovative and new technologies. They requested that more detail
be provided in future stages of plan preparation.
Objective 7: To support the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions through
sustainable management of waste

4.1.14

4.1.15

5

Generally, operators agreed that the SWLP should seek to limit vehicle movements
from the highways network, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions and
improving environmental conditions for the benefit of local residents. They provided
a number of suggestions as to how this could be achieved including:


Greater use of railway networks for transporting waste



Using vehicles which ran on alternative fuels



Locating depots and facilities together to minimise vehicle movements



Transporting waste outside of ‘normal’ operating hours

All these options will need to be considered when preparing the new SWLP.

Businesses
5.1

Difficulties Contacting Businesses

5.1.1

It has historically been very difficult for the council to engage businesses for a
variety of reasons. As a result, the council’s understanding of commercial waste
streams and the needs of businesses are limited.

5.1.2

In order to identify the needs of businesses a bespoke survey was created and
distributed through the Surrey Business Forum. However, only one business
responded to the survey.

5.1.3

Further work is therefore needed to identify the needs of businesses in Surrey with
respect to changes in the type and amount of waste being produced and to ensure
commercial and industrial wastes are fully considered.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 54

R e s i d e n t s | 25

6

Residents
6.1
6.1.1

Statement of Community Involvement
The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how and when
stakeholders can influence the content of new planning policy documents. The SCI
sets out guiding principles for public engagement, including:


Trying to involve everyone who may be affected by planning decisions



Using a range of methods to make it easy for people to respond



Having an open and transparent process



Managing expectations and providing feedback to respondents

6.1.2

The council identified a range of organisations and people who may be affected by
planning decisions in Surrey in the SCI. These groups will be contacted by email or
letter, to all statutory organisations and other organisations or groups on our
minerals and waste database.

6.1.3

The council will publish the updated database alongside the outcome of the
consultation. The details of the consultation were widely distributed by a range of
print and digital media to make sure that any organisations who did not receive a
letter would be aware of the consultation. Any new organisations identified through
the Issues and Options Consultation will be added to the database.

6.1.4

The SCI states that for the gathering of evidence and public consultation on what
the local plan should include should last for 12 weeks. The Issues and Options
Consultation was held for the period 2 September to 25 November. This is greater
than the statutory consultation period required for most documents and was aimed
at giving respondents sufficient time to receive and consider the documents.

6.1.5

The SCI requires that consultation documents are published on the council’s
website with details of where and when paper copies of consultation documents can
be viewed. The documents were published on a webpage for the new SWLP and
made documents available at district and borough council offices. A Plain English
survey was made available which was aimed at making the key information in the
consultation accessible to all residents. Copies of these surveys, with self-sealing
envelopes for easy return, were provided at district and borough council offices and
local libraries.

6.1.6

Finally, the SCI requires the council to publish a summary of the results of
consultations on our website. The council acknowledges that it may not be able to
reply to individual representations but it will make sure that it outlines the key issues
and how the council intends to address these at later stages in the development of
the new SWLP.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 55

R e s i d e n t s | 26

6.2

Overview

6.2.1

Over 600 representations were received in response to the public consultation. Only
three parish councils and/or residents’ associations responded and one action
group.

6.2.2

The responses received were a mix of on-line responses, paper questionnaires,
letters and emails. The majority of responses (84%) were submitted via the online
consultation portal with only 16% of responses submitted in paper form. There was
a relatively even split between respondents in the age categories 35-44, 45-54 and
55-64. Fewer responses were received from the age groups 35 and under. For a
geographical distribution by borough/district see Appendix 3.

6.2.3

The majority of respondents were happy with the process the council was intending
to follow to develop the plan. Those that were unhappy about the plan preparation
process were mainly concerned about changes to the service being offered at
Community Recycling Centres (CRCs) and the process lacking clarity and
transparency.

6.3
6.3.1

Identified Issues
Surrey County Council, as the WPA, identified a range of issues considered by the
council to be important in terms of the context for planning for waste facilities.
Broadly this included:


Rules and practices for managing waste e.g. encouraging reuse and
recycling



Achieving economic benefits from waste



Making sure there are waste facilities for future growth e.g. new houses
being built



Minimising impacts to the transport network e.g. busy roads



Minimising impacts on the local area's environment e.g. air quality

6.3.2

A large number of respondents (65%) strongly agreed that ‘Rules and practices for
managing waste’ and ‘Minimising impacts on the local area's environment e.g. air
quality’ (73%) were important issues. Other factors, such as ‘achieving the economic
benefits of waste’ received less support (36% strongly agreed).

6.3.3

Over half the respondents felt that ‘Making sure we have waste facilities for future
growth e.g. new houses being built’ (63% strongly agreed) and ‘Minimising impacts
to the transport network e.g. busy roads’ (53% strongly agreed) suggesting that
these issues were also important to residents.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 56

R e s i d e n t s | 27
Issues
100

75
50
25
0
Future growth

Strongly agree

Transport infrastructure

Environmental Protection

Slightly agree

Neither

Institutional and
responsibility

Slightly disagree

Resource value of waste

Strongly disagree

Figure 2 Result of residents views of the issues (%)

6.3.4

6.4

Respondents were asked if there were any other issues that the council should be
considering. Responses from residents included; the needs of local communities,
particularly around accessibility and the level of service they receive, promoting
sustainable waste management techniques and moving away from landfill to
cleaner, greener technologies were also supported.

Other Issues for consideration
Issues related to waste disposal

6.4.1

The largest number of comments received from residents related to the introduction
of charges at Community Recycling Centres and the perception that this has or will
result in an increase in fly tipping. The issues of charges at CRCs falls outside the
remit of the WPA and comments related to the management of the CRCs have been
passed to the Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) to review. However the council is
encouraged by the number of residents who use the CRCs and it will work (as the
WDA) to address this issue.

6.4.2

There were 73 comments which related to encouraging recycling. These comments
referred to reducing packaging from businesses and educating the public on what
can be recycled and reused.
Transport

6.4.3

A number of comments received related to HGVs being located on smaller
residential, country roads. As Surrey County Council is also the Highways Authority
it is essential for the county council to review the strategy for managing HGV traffic
on the road. Paragraph 5 of the NPPW states that sites should be suitable for "the
capacity of existing and potential transport infrastructure to support the sustainable
movement of waste".

6.4.4

The WPA will consider, when assessing new waste sites, any adverse impacts on
the local road network and impact on residents. As the Highways Authority, Surrey
County Council provides comments and may recommend conditions on planning
applications where there are highways issues relating to road safety, intensification
and sustainability. The council will work with its partners including operators and
other authorities to manage HGV movements as effectively as possible.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 57

R e s i d e n t s | 28
Environmental Concerns
6.4.5

More than 40 comments supported minimising impacts on the environment. These
made reference to both local environmental issues as well as wider national
environmental issues. These comments also related to adverse impacts that existing
waste sites had on the environment. This would typically refer to sites being located
away from areas which had high pollution levels in order to avoid further pollution.

6.4.6

The new SWLP will be compliant with national policy which states that site suitability
should consider "the cumulative impact of existing and proposed waste disposal
facilities on the well-being of the community, including any significant adverse
impacts on environmental quality" (paragraph 5 of the NPPW).
Location and Accessibility

6.4.7

A number of comments were received regarding the location of waste sites. In
particular, a number of comments received related to making recycling facilities
accessible to a wider range of residents e.g. students and the elderly. It was evident
that many residents recognised the need for recycling centres to be located within a
reasonable distance of housing.

6.4.8

These comments will be considered when assessing the potential of land suitable
for waste development. They may be incorporated into the ‘Assessment of Suitable
Land Scoping Statement’ where appropriate.
New Technologies

6.4.9

Several comments referred to new technologies for dealing with waste. Many
comments stated disagreement with using landfill and that waste could be better
used as an energy resource by using incineration.

6.4.10

In accordance with the NPPW paragraph 3 it is recognised that waste management
facilities such as incinerators can be controversial. This is also recognised by the
WPA and will be considered during site assessments and as part of making
informed decisions on where such developments would be appropriate if at all. The
WPA will need to remain engaged with the public in ensuring that their views are
recognised and that they recognise the National Policy requirements for planning for
waste.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 58

R e s i d e n t s | 29

6.5
6.5.1

Draft Vision
Generally, there was support for the draft vision as showing a positive approach
(37% strongly agree and 33% slightly agree) and ambition and being ambitious
(40% strongly agreeing and 29% slightly agreeing). Not all residents agreed that the
vision was achievable (only 17% strongly agreed).

Ambitious

Positive

Strongly agree

Slightly agree

Neither

Slightly disagree

Achievable

Strongly disagree

Figure 3 Result of residents views of the vision (%)

6.5.2

Respondents were asked to comment on the draft vision. A total of 232 comments
were made which directly related to the vision. From these comments, 64
respondents commented on the vision being unclear or confusing and contained
jargon. The council will consider the wording of the vision so it is clear and
accessible to a range of stakeholders.

6.5.3

Comments were also received in response to wording in the vision which promoted
‘managing waste in facilities within the County’. There was a mixed response as a
number of respondents did not want more facilities in Surrey.

6.5.4

Paragraph 3 of the NPPW states that “Waste planning authorities should prepare
Local Plans which identify sufficient opportunities to meet the identified needs of
their area for the management of waste streams”. However, the NPPW also requires
the WPA to consider “the extent to which the capacity of existing operational
facilities would satisfy any identified need” (paragraph 3 of the NPPW) and the
“physical and environmental constraints on development” (paragraph 5 of the
NPPW). Therefore new waste management facilities will need to be carefully
considered and the need for these facilities weighed against other constraints.

6.5.5

Finally, the council recognises that to a certain extent the market will determine
where waste is managed and this could mean that Surrey’s waste may be treated
outside of the County. The council’s position is to provide facilities in Surrey to meet
the equivalent waste arising in the county which is consistent with national policy.

6.5.6

There were further comments related to the proposed plan period for a new waste
local plan. The NPPF states that plans should “be drawn up over an appropriate
time scale, preferably a 15 year time horizon, take account of longer term
requirements, and be kept up to date”.

6.5.7

Respondents commented on wording in the vision which stated ‘By 2033 there will
be no landfill of waste’. Some respondents doubted that zero landfill waste was
achievable by 2033, while others stated that 2033 was not ambitious enough and
that this date should be brought forward.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 59

R e s i d e n t s | 30

6.6

Other Comments

6.6.1

These comments highlighted a strong recommendation for the council to continue to
engage with residents and stakeholders. The Statement of Community Involvement
sets out the consultation process and the timescales associated with each stage for
residents and other stakeholders to provide input into the new waste local plan.
Specifically, the next stage of consultation will be on the draft plan and will also run
for 12 weeks.

6.6.2

This consultation did not contain any sites or areas being considered for waste
related development. A number of residents were keen to see further details in the
plan. Residents will have opportunity to view and comment on these sites and areas
as part of the draft plan stage.

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 60

A p p e n d i x 1 – T y p e s o f C o n s u l t e e s | 31

Appendix 1 – Types of Consultees
Table 1 Types of consultees

Stakeholder type

Examples of who this included


Surrey District and Borough Councils



Adjoining Local Authorities



Other Waste Planning Authorities



Mayor of London



Transport bodies



Historic England



Natural England



The Environment Agency



Local Enterprise Partnerships



Surrey Local Nature Partnership



Other Government Organisations



Surrey Wildlife Trust



National Trust



The Canal & River Trust



AONB Management Boards



Operators at existing sites



Any landowners who are interested in waste
sites

Businesses



Surrey Businesses

Residents



Residents Associations



Parish Councils



Neighbourhood Planning groups



Voluntary organisations



Action Groups



Residents

Duty to Cooperate Bodies

Other organisations

Operators and Landowners

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 61

Appendix 2 – Duty to Cooperate Bodies and other
A g e n c i e s | 32

Appendix 2 – Duty to Cooperate Bodies and other
Agencies
Table 2 Duty to Cooperate Bodies who responded to the Issues and Options Consultation

Organisation/Authority
Elmbridge Borough Council
Mole Valley District Council
Reigate & Banstead Borough Council
Runnymede Borough Council
Spelthorne Borough Council
Waverley Borough Council
Islington
Bedford
East Sussex
Hampshire
Kent
Peterborough
Sandwell
Stockton-on-Tees
North London Waste Plan
The Environment Agency
Historic England
Natural England
Transport for London
Network Rail
County Highway Authority
Gatwick Airport

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 62

Appendix 2 – Duty to Cooperate Bodies and other
A g e n c i e s | 33
Table 3 Other agencies who responded to the Issues and Options Consultation

Surrey Hills AONB Office
High Weald AONB Office

Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 63

A p p e n d i x 3 – M a p o f r e s i d e n t r e s p o n s e s | 34

Page 64
Surrey County Council Issues & Options Response Report

Page 65

EPEH Scrutiny Board
Budget Planning Update
12 January 2017

Item 8

Agenda
1.Main areas of spend
Page 66

2.Areas of focus for savings (to follow)

2016/17 Highways & Transport budget
by function (£000s)
Staffing, other costs
& income
£9,678

Roads
£6,204
Environmental
Maintenance
£2,816

Page 67

Signs and Lines
£910
Bridges and
Structures
£1,254

Traffic Signals
£776
Local Schemes
£1,938

Drainage
£3,347

Net budget
£44.9m

Street Lights and
Furniture
£15,390

Winter Service and
Safety Barriers
£2,601

2016/17 Highways & Transport budget
by expenditure type (£000s)
Income
-£7,611

Page 68

Staff costs
£15,324
[CATEGORY NAME]
e.g. contracts
[VALUE]

Net budget
£44.9m

2016/17 Environment & Planning Budget
by function (£000s)
Countryside
£2,043

Place &
Sustainability
£636
Travel & Transport
£18,292

Page 69

Planning &
Development
£2,407
Waste
Management
£55,809

Other
£518
Net budget
£79.7m

2016/17 Environment & Planning Budget
by expenditure type (£000s)
Income
-£8,476
Staffing costs
£9,841
Page 70

[CATEGORY NAME]
e.g. contracts
[VALUE]

Net budget
£79.7m

2017-21 New Savings Proposals
(Details to follow at meeting)

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

